Senate Committee on Educational Policy (SCEP)
October 4, 2017
Minutes of the Meeting

These minutes reflect discussion and debate at a meeting of a committee of the University of Minnesota
Senate; none of the comments, conclusions or actions reported in these minutes represent the views of,
nor are they binding on, the senate, the administration or the Board of Regents.

[In these minutes: Announcements; Action on Administrative Policy: Undergraduate Degrees
with Distinction & Degrees with Honors; Next Steps on Mental Health Recommendations;
Liberal Education; Undergraduate Policies; Follow-up on Preferred Name Discussion]

PRESENT: Jennifer Goodnough (chair), Michael Anderson, John Carlis, Giancarlo Casale,
Elaine Darst, Sydney Elliott, Michelle Dobbratz, Stacy Doepner-Hove, Gayle Golden, Jude
Goossens, Scott Lanyon, Kenneth Leopold, Keith Mayes, Bob McMaster, Lauren Mitchell,
Robert Poch, Abby Vogel, Nevin Young

REGRETS: Nicola Alexander, Stacy Doepner-Hove
ABSENT: Michelle Dobbratz

GUESTS: Jennifer Reckner, chief of staff, Office of Undergraduate Education; Stacey Tidball,
director, Compliance, Academic Support Resources

OTHERS: Chris Mueller, interim vice president, Education, Academic Health Center (for Brian
Sick); Leslie Schiff, associate dean, University Curriculum, Office of Undergraduate Education

1. Announcements
Chair Goodnough called the meeting to order and made the following announcements:

e Student volunteers are needed to serve on the Morse and Graduate/Professional teaching
award selection committees.

e SCEP is up for review by the Committee on Committees, which reviews committees on a
five-year rotation. A survey will be sent to members in advance, and a representative
from the Committee on Committees will attend a subsequent meeting (probably in
November).

e Chair Goodnough spoke with Faculty Consultative Committee (FCC) chair Joe Konstan
about the clause in the Administrative Policy: Undergraduate Degrees with Distinction &
Degrees with Honors stating that SCEP should review annually the percentage of
students graduating with honors. Chair Konstan felt that SCEP should perform such a
review, and then determine whether it needs to be done annually.

2. Action on Administrative Policy: Undergraduate Degrees with Distinction &
Degrees with Honors

Goodnough summarized the previous meeting’s discussion on revisions to the Administrative
Policy: Undergraduate Degrees with Distinction & Degrees with Honors. Hearing no further



https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B_A-1Zh-2cl3Z2hMWFZ1aU9uR3M/view?usp=sharing
https://policy.umn.edu/education/degreeshonors
https://policy.umn.edu/education/degreeshonors

discussion, a motion to approve was made, and the revisions were approved by a voice vote with
one abstention.

3. Next Steps on Mental Health Recommendations
Next, Goodnough reminded members about three recommendations that came out of the report
of the Joint Task Force on Student Mental Health and asked members whether they wanted to
pursue action on any of them. The recommendations were:

e Allow students to reschedule an exam if they have three or more major exams or papers

on the same day, outside of the finals period (this is already allowed during finals)
e Make syllabi available to students prior to registration
e Allow students with documented mental health disabilities to register early

Goodnough said that past discussion in the committee had revealed that early registration is
allowed under some circumstances-- if it is one of the accommodations listed in the student’s
accommodation letter provided by the Disability Resource Center, the student’s academic
adviser can make the adjustment in the student’s registration time.

Regarding syllabi availability, members said that in Canvas, which will replace Moodle as the
University’s Learning Management System, it is possible to make syllabi available to anyone
with an x.500, while making the course available only to those enrolled. Gayle Golden added any
syllabi posted in this manner will also be listed in an index that will allow students to easily
reference them. Members then discussed whether to pursue advocating for instructors to do this.
Some members were hesitant, expressing concerns such as the difficulty of keeping the syllabi
up to date. Goodnough asked the student members of the committee how they felt. Some said
that having syllabi available in advance did not matter to them, but others felt that it was useful
and that having to ask for it presents a barrier. Most members generally agreed that encouraging
instructors to have syllabi available in this way would be good, but trying to make it mandatory
is not realistic. Goodnough suggested adding language to the FAQ in the relevant policy about
providing and requesting syllabi, and members also suggested asking the person who sets up new
Canvas account to encourage instructors to make syllabi available to all with an x.500.

Goodnough then asked if the committee wanted to take any action on the issue of three major
exams/projects on the same day. She suggested adding language to the FAQ of the appropriate
policy. Abby Vogel suggested also putting language in syllabi.

In the interest of time, the discussion finished there and will be continued at a subsequent
meeting.

4. Liberal Education

Chair Goodnough welcomed Bob McMaster, vice president and dean, Office of Undergraduate
Education, in order to update the committee on the status of discussions around possible changes
to the liberal education requirements. McMaster thanked the committee for the invitation, and
said it was very useful for him to make this presentation at this meeting, as he would be giving it
the next day at a meeting of the Twin Cities Delegation of the Faculty Senate. He then went
through a PowerPoint presentation and directed members to the Pre-Planning Website, where



http://usenate.umn.edu/sites/g/files/pua3451/f/media/jtfsmh_report_2017.pdf
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B95TvwsoC61fai1nRlY0cFQ3Vlk/view?usp=sharing
http://undergrad.umn.edu/liberal-education-pre-planning

summaries of the campus-wide fora are available. He added that Golden, Ken Leopold, and
Keith Mayes had been members of the Pre-Planning Committee. Then he invited questions.

Robert Poch asked what the distribution of members of the Redesign Committee would look
like. McMaster responded that they were still establishing the membership, but that the
committee would consist of faculty and instructors and would aim to be representative of the
campus. Vogel asked whether students would have a chance to weigh in, and McMaster said that
they would. Giancarlo Casale explained the history of liberal education, saying that in the
medieval university, there were seven liberal arts, which students had to master before going on
to what we would now call professional school (law, medical, theology, etc). He said that the
U.S. is the only country that still operates under this system; in the rest of the world, students go
straight to professional school after secondary school. Casale went on to say that he believes the
idea of liberal education confuses students, because they do not know this history-- for example,
a student who aspires to be a lawyer in the future come to college and assume they need to take
courses that are “closest” to studying law, not understanding that the liberal arts were meant to
be mastered first, and not appreciating that majoring in something unrelated to one’s future
professional degree can actually give one a competitive advantage in the workforce. Casale
wondered whether this context has been considered during the discussions about changing the
liberal education curriculum. McMaster said that while students may not know the history of the
medieval university, he believes that most understand the value of liberal education. Vogel
pointed out that one of the suggestions for revising the liberal education curriculum was to
spread it out across all four years, rather than concentrating it in the freshman and sophomore
years, and said that that seemed contrary to the intent of mastering liberal education before
specializing. She also said that it would present a challenge for some majors, which are heavily
weighted in the junior and senior years. McMaster agreed, adding that it would also cause
difficulties for transfer students.

Goodnough pointed out that the term “liberal education” being confused with left-leaning
politics has been discussed in The Chronicle, and that this can present a branding issue for
universities that already struggle with being perceived as unwelcoming to conservative students,
and said that some universities use the term “general education” or “core curriculum.” McMaster
added that at the University of Minnesota, the “liberal education” is often conflated with the
College of Liberal Arts. Mayes cautioned against changing the phrase from “liberal education”
because it is mistakenly associated with liberal politics; McMaster agreed, but said that the
confusion with the College of Liberal Arts is another issue to consider.

McMaster thanked the committee for their time. Bathke reminded members that they were
welcome to attend and participate in further discussion at the the Twin Cities Delegation
meeting.

5. Undergraduate Policies

Next, Goodnough welcomed Stacey Tidball, director, Compliance, Academic Support Resources
and Jennifer Reckner, chief of staff, Office of Undergraduate Education, who were present to
consult with the committee on two administrative policies: Grade Accountability and Grading
and Transcripts.



https://policy.umn.edu/education/gradeaccount
https://policy.umn.edu/education/gradingtranscripts
https://policy.umn.edu/education/gradingtranscripts

Tidball said that the Administrative Policy: Grade Accountability was up for comprehensive
review, and that there were not many proposed changes. She asked whether the committee had
any feedback or suggestions. Goodnough asked about section 1(c), which read, “In courses
where the instructor in charge of a course is an adjunct faculty member who may be affiliated
with the University for only a short period of time, the department or academic unit may assign a
regular faculty member to be accountable for grades after the course has ended.” She suggested
amending it to read “...the academic unit should assign...” and pointed out that this could happen
when the instructor in charge of the course has left the University for any reason; not just in the
case of adjuncts. Tidball agreed. John Carlis said that in his department, only the faculty member
who taught the course can change a grade. McMaster clarified that if the instructor has left the
University, the department chair has the authority to change the grade. Carlis asked if this was in
writing anywhere, and McMaster said that he did not know. Members agreed that it should be.
Goodnough asked whether this applied mainly to filling in grades for Is and NRs, rather than
changing, for example, a C to a C+. Tidball said that it can apply to any grade changes, as grades
are sometimes changed as a result of conflict resolution, scholastic dishonesty, etc. Goodnough
suggested that Tidball bring some proposed language back to the committee, and that a vote be
taken at that time. Members agreed.

Next, the discussion turned to the Administrative Policy: Grading and Transcripts. Tidball
explained that a number of revisions to this policy had been proposed, including the deadline to
complete coursework and resolve an I and the descriptions of letter grades. Leopold added that
he is particularly troubled about the descriptions of letter grades, because they do not align with
how the letter grades are applied in reality. Tidball said that over the summer, there was a small
working group that had come up with some recommendations, such as adding two new FAQs,
eliminated duplication within the policy, and rephrasing some unclear language, which had been
shared with the committee in advance of the meeting. Golden said that one of the ideas of the
working group was to pull non-grade transcript symbols (such as Is and NRs) out of this policy
and put them in another. Tidball said that she would need to check with Michele Gross, director,
University Policy Program, on the procedure for moving, rather than changing, policy language.
She suggested putting the policy with the revisions proposed by the small working group into a
Google doc, so that the committee could add suggestions prior to the next meeting. Members
agreed.

Leopold added that he is concerned about fairness in grading group work.

Golden said that the Office for Community Standards (formerly OSCAI) had a new process for
handling cases of plagiarism, and were encouraging faculty not to give students Fs on the first
offense, but rather to focus on restorative justice and raising awareness. She said she was
concerned that this approach is not appropriate for all departments-- in the School of Journalism,
for example, students receive Fs for plagiarism, as one such offense in their professional career
will end it. Goodnough suggested referring this problem to the Student Academic Integrity
Committee (SAIC).



6. Follow-up on Preferred Name Discussion

Finally, Goodnough referenced the discussion at the September 2017 meeting on preferred
names and making students aware of where that name will be used. She asked members whether
they wanted to pursue this issue. Tidball said that language parallel to what appears on Morris’
website could be added to the One Stop website, and added that Stef Wilenchek and Melinda
Lee, director and assistant director of the Gender and Sexuality Center for Queer and Trans Life,
and Tina Marisam, director, Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action, were working on a
proposed Trans and Gender Non-Conforming Equity Policy that may address this issue.
Goodnough suggested tabling this discussion until Wilenchek and Lee visit the committee to
consult on the proposed policy, and members agreed.

Goodnough reminded members to review and comment on the Administrative Policy: Grading
and Transcripts before the next meeting, and adjourned the meeting.

Amber Bathke
University Senate Office


https://www4.morris.umn.edu/policies/preferred-name
https://www4.morris.umn.edu/policies/preferred-name

